Shelley, Christopher

From: Norfolk Constabulary <policeconnect@mailshot.norfolk.police.uk>

Sent: 09 December 2021 08:31 **To:** Shelley, Christopher

Subject: TEST: Norfolk Constabulary OP Randall June Newsletter



Another newsletter, another month and here we are...time for a festive update a little later than planned due to a few delays so apologies for the lateness! It seems only five minutes ago that I was completing the last festive edition! We probably all say this around this time of year, but I have no idea where this year has gone.

It's been a busy year and this last month has been no different. I was lucky enough to attend JCB's headquarters last month for a conference on tackling plant and agricultural machinery, and working with the industry. It was a valuable day and a great experience.

At the point of writing, it has just been announced that a national house order for all poultry will be in place from Monday, 29 November...but more on that later.

I fully expect December to be another busy month: I have several days of action with partner agencies planned and a national Wildlife Enforcement Conference.

As always, please drop me an email should you wish to raise any concerns or issues.

PDF Version of Newsletter

Since switching over provider of our emailing systems I have had some community organisations unable to put the new format on parish websites and similar. This month I will attempt to start creating a PDF version to send round to relevant people. Please note this will NOT replace the normal way in receiving the newsletter, this is only open to people who republish/redistribute the newsletter. If you wish to receive the Newsletter via PDF please contact me to get added to this mailing list.









Dogs Worrying Livestock and The Countryside Code

We are seeing a worrying rise in reports of sheep being attacked by dogs not under proper control, and this week alone I am aware of two such incidents. Given many ewes are in the early stages of pregnancy at the moment, this is an incredibly vulnerable time for them. Simply the act of being chased can cause serious harm and distress to the animal.

Dogs must be always kept on a lead around any livestock and it is a criminal offence to allow a dog under your control or one that is your responsibility to worry livestock.

We will take any reports of incidents like this very seriously and they will be fully investigated. This crime causes significant stress and financial loss to farmers and is so easily avoidable.

The Countryside Code





Your guide to enjoying parks and waterways, coast and countryside

Respect everyone _

- be considerate to those living in, working in and enjoying the countryside
- leave gates and property as you find them
- do not block access to gateways or driveways when parking
- be nice, say hello, share the space
- follow local signs and keep to marked paths unless wider access is available

Protect the environment.

- · take your litter home leave no trace of your visit
- · take care with BBQs and do not light fires
- always keep dogs under control and in sight
- dog poo bag it and bin it any public waste bin will do
- · care for nature do not cause damage or disturbance

Enjoy the outdoors

- · check your route and local conditions
- plan your adventure know what to expect and what you can do
- · enjoy your visit, have fun, make a memory



www.gov.uk/countryside-code

Dont Forget To Follow Us On Twitter!

Don't forget to join us on Twitter! Our page is designed to let you know what we are up to as a team as much as possible as well as share info about crime prevention and engagement events and anything else we think might be useful. Click the logo below to visit our page.





PC Chris Shelley | christopher.shelley@norfolk.police.uk| 07900 407106

Heritage Crime

There are an abundance of historic buildings, monuments, and areas of significant historical value in Norfolk. These areas are part of our history and afforded significant protection under the Ancient Monuments and Archaeological Areas Act 1979.

The Norfolk Archaeological Trust (you can visit its website here: https://www.norfarchtrust.org.uk/) currently manages 11 of these sites, and its staff and volunteers work tirelessly to protect these sites and keep them open to the public. Sadly, their staff are increasingly being abused by members of public who fail to follow the guidelines around these sites. There have also been reports of criminal damage – incidents where people have daubed graffiti - at Burgh Castle and St Benets Abbey. Alongside the trust, we are encouraging visitors to follow the advice when visiting these sites, including keeping dogs on leads. If you see anything suspicious, please tell us about it immediately. Please call 999 if a crime is in action or you can report a crime online or by calling us on 101. If you would prefer to do this anonymously, you can do so by contacting Crimestoppers on 0800 555 111 or via the website: https://crimestoppers-uk.org/give-information/forms/give-information-anonymously .

Please also know that it is an offence to use a metal detector at any of these sites. Please contact us if you see someone using a metal detector at any of these protected sites.

Historic England - a national public body that assists in protecting our listed, schedule monuments -has lots of advice and information, including an

interactive map so you can see all the sites of interest around you. Take a look here: https://historicengland.org.uk/

WhatsApp Group

The Operation Randall WhatsApp group is expanding. At present the group mainly consists of partner agencies, key landowners and administrators of other social media rural groups. I am currently looking at increasing the size of this group so if you meet one or more of the above criteria – work for a partner agency, key landowner or you administer another rural group on social media - or if you think you would benefit or be able to contribute in any way, I want to hear from you. You can contact me on email at christopher.shelley@norfolk.police.uk

Seals Around our Coastline

As we move into the winter months, the nature around our coastline changes. We spent the summer months educating people around ground nesting birds as part of OP Seabird, and now it turns to the breeding seal colonies along our coast most notably at Horsey and Winterton.

Many of the seals will spend considerable amount of time on land with pups over the next couple of months. There are some key things to remember if you're thinking of observing these fascinating creatures:

- · Always follow signs/guidance at the site you visit (respect the volunteers)
- Never approach a seal and always keep 10 metres minimum away (no selfies!)
- Never touch a seal or seal pup (their bite is nasty and carries some very nasty bacteria)
- If you see a seal pup on its own it is likely fine, mum will probably be out fishing. It's not uncommon for pups to be left for lengthy periods of time. Please do not approach or touch the pup as its mother could abandon it causing significant unnecessary suffering.
- If you do have concerns for the welfare of a seal, please contact the relevant organisations: the RSPCA, tel: 0300 123 4999 or the Friends of Horsey Seals (also cover Winterton), tel: 07706 314514.
- Never allow dogs to get anywhere near the seals, always keep dogs on a lead
- Leave the area as you found it, taking your litter home with you.



Photo Credit @HorseySeals (Twitter)

Appeal after damage to seal pup by motorcyclists - Sea Palling

Police are appealing for information or witnesses after two trials bikers were seen riding over a seal pup in Sea Palling

The motorcyclists on trials bikes were reported to the police after they were seen at the beach in Sea Palling on Beach Road during the late morning late morning on Friday (3 December 2021).

PC Thomas Walsh said: "It's not clear whether the seal pup was alive at the time the bikes ran over the pup, but obviously this is a disturbing incident. We have a duty of care to protect the wildlife on our coasts and we are keen for people to come forward to give us more information. We always urge people to act responsibly and ensure the seal population is not disturbed and we will act against those who wilfully harm our wildlife."

Anyone with information should contact PC Thomas Walsh at Norfolk Constabulary on 101 quoting reference 495 of 3 December 2021. Alternatively contact Crimestoppers 100% anonymously on 0800 555111.



Bird Flu

Sadly, we have seen bird flu return this winter earlier than in previous years and there have been more confirmed cases than in previous years at this point in time. This has led the Government to reintroduce the housing order for all poultry and captive birds. This means that from now on, all birds are housed...whether you keep 2 or 3 chickens in your back garden or 10,000 birds on a commercial basis. This is a tough ask for some small holdings, but it is essential to break the spread of this disease. Biosecurity measures must be maintained and to the highest standards.

Avian Influenza (bird flu) is a notifiable animal disease. If you suspect any type of avian influenza in poultry or captive birds, you must report it immediately by calling the Defra Rural Services Helpline on 03000 200 301. Failure to do so is an offence.

If you find dead wild waterfowl (swans, geese or ducks) or other dead wild birds, such as gulls or birds of prey, you should report them to the Defra helpline on 03459 33 55 77. Do not touch or pick up any dead or visibly sick birds that you find. For further information, go here:

https://www.gov.uk/guidance/avian-influenza-bird-flu#public

The UK Health Security Agency (UKHSA) has said that Avian Influenza is primarily a disease of birds and the risk to the general public's health is very low. The regional UKHSA Health Protection Teams are working closely with Defra to monitor the situation and will be providing health advice to persons at any infected premises as a precaution.

The Food Standards Agency has said that based on the current scientific evidence, Avian Influenza poses a very low food safety risk for UK consumers. Properly cooked poultry and poultry products, including eggs, are safe to eat.

Doorstep Crime

Norfolk Trading Standards has received a few reports recently of cold callers on doorsteps and this time of year, we usually see an increase in reports...usually cold callers asking about roof repairs.

The general advice is:

- Never deal with anyone on your doorstep.
- Anyone from a genuine business will provide ID and you should always ask for ID.
- Genuine tradespeople are unlikely to turn up unannounced to carry out any work.
- Never invite anyone into your property who you don't know or haven't invited to your address.
- Use a spy hole in the door or chain to see who is at the door before opening the door.
- Should you receive a cold caller at your address, please report to police and Trading Standards. Remember to get as much detail as possible and any descriptions.

While on the subject of cold callers, we continue to receive reports that people have had phone calls from 'Police Officers' requesting money to be sent, etc. Please remember and ensure any loved ones know that:

- Police officers will never ask for any money to be sent.
- Police officers will not ask for your banking details unless part of an investigation you are already involved in and know about.
- Police will never ask for any PIN numbers or security codes (the three numbers on backs of debit or credit cards)
- Police officers will also never ask you to purchase any form of gift card.
- Police will never use courier services to collect money or gift cards.
- Never give your banking details to anyone that calls you.
- Should you be contacted by someone claiming to be a police officer who asks for any of the above, please report it to us. If police contact you and you are unsure whether it's genuine, please ask for their collar number/station, put the phone down and ring 101 and they will either confirm that is correct or not and help to reconnect you to that officer.

OPERATION GALILEO ILLEGAL HARE COURSING

Hare Coursing - OP Galileo

I'm pleased to tell you that there are low numbers of reported incidents this year and in the west of the county we are well below the usual number of reported incidents. In South Norfolk, there has been a slight increase in reports with PC Sue Matthews currently investigating one incident where drilled crops have been damaged. We continue to ask that members of public report all hare coursing via 999.

Cooking Oil

ooking oil is becoming a very popular commodity and reports of it being stolen from businesses continues. If you have waste oil, please consider how you're storing it and also make sure all your staff are aware of which company should be collecting the oil.

In the past month, six people have been arrested in connection with such thefts and two vehicles seized. The six people have been released under investigation while our enquiries continue.

Tool Thefts and Property Marking

Tool thefts have seen a small rise in recent weeks in particular from vehicles. This fits in with a national rise in similar crimes and is believed to be because criminals are looking for smaller plant items that are currently in short supply together with a buoyant second-hand market.

Please consider the following security advice:

- · Mark your property overtly with permanent pen or engraving (postcode and surname).
- Keep photographs of property along with serial numbers (we regularly recover tools/plant but struggle to get it back to the rightful owner).
- Only carry the tools you require for your day's work.
- Do not leave tools in vehicles overnight.
- Where possible park in well-lit areas. Please consider if you can park with the back and/or side doors of your van against a hard object, like a wall, for example.
- Consider forensic marking your equipment
- Install a van alarm and/or CCTV within your vehicle.
- Advertise the fact your property is marked, and security systems have been installed in your vehicle.
- Consider use of GPS tracking on larger items.



What is happening in the countryside in December?

December in the countryside can look a little bleak; there are very few plants in flower or even green and the landscape looks a little bare.

Many of our birds this time of year appreciate a little extra feed from kind gardeners and as such many are rewarded with visits from the bird that lights up December: the Robin. If you own a pond of any sort, now is the time to think about maintenance as most newts and other creatures have moved out of the cold waters for winter so you're unlikely to disturb any of them.

Hedgehogs will now be deep into their winter hibernation and while some may still venture out, it is very unlikely you will see them. Be very careful when moving piles of leaves and litter as they could be tucked up inside and be careful when preparing a bonfire. Ideally, move the pile of leaves and debris again before burning to be sure there aren't any animals trapped inside.

Our waterways and lakes are now full of waders and ducks, many which have arrived from the Arctic or Northern Europe.

In the farming calendar, it may be considered a slower month on paper but with farming it never stops. If the weather is dry, many will be still ploughing and preparing soil for next year's crops as well as rushing to get the sugar beet out of the ground again. Farmer prefer to get this done during dryer spells as it does less damage to the soil structure.

Also, our winter crops are generally harvested at this time of the year, including many of our Christmas Day favourites: sprouts, parsnips, swede, leeks, and cauliflowers. In Norfolk, we have a number of these crops grown in the free draining soil of the west of the county.

Alongside all of this, December is seen as an important month for carrying out maintenance jobs and taking care of conservation areas - the laying of hedges (a traditional method of maintaining hedges which remains popular in some areas) needs completing before birds start nesting.

Livestock farmers are busy keeping indoor sheds clean and fresh and continue to meet the ongoing cost of feeding the livestock. That straw that was baled in the summer is now rapidly disappearing and the cut grass which was put into silage clamps or baled up is now a pleasant reminder of warmer months.

News From Across The Border!

I'd like to share a story from our colleagues over the border: some fantastic work by the Suffolk Rural Crime Team and partner agencies that highlights the importance of us all working together.

Shane Leech, age 33, was sentenced at Ipswich Magistrates' Court in November to two counts of failure to comply with the keeping of chemicals health and safety regulations, as well as four counts of failure to comply with firearm licenses. He was given a 12-month community order and must carry out 80 hours of unpaid work. Leech had previously pleaded guilty to these offences at an earlier court hearing.

It followed an incident on 15th September 2020 when a member of the public contacted Natural England to report a dead buzzard and pigeon near Lakenheath in Suffolk.

The birds were collected and sent for forensic testing and results showed that the partially plucked pigeon had Bendiocarb residue - a highly toxic chemical used on insects - on its body. In addition, the buzzard had Bendiocarb residue in its stomach and it is likely that the buzzard died after eating the pigeon carcass.

There was insufficient evidence to prove Mr Leech was the one who put out poisoned bait or killed the buzzard.

However, a search of Leech's home on the 18th January 2021 found two 3kg containers of Bendiocarb and around thirty dead pheasants on the floor of one of his outbuildings. There were no health and safety warnings stating that insecticide chemicals were being stored anywhere on Leech's property. The search also discovered two shotguns in an unlocked room of Leech's house. Suffolk Police reported the case to the CPS who reviewed the evidence and authorised charges against Leech for breaches of health and safety and firearm licenses.

Ashley Petchey, of the CPS, said: "Shane Leech showed no responsibility for his actions. This case demonstrates the need to store chemicals securely and safely as failing to do so can have tragic circumstances, especially for wildlife in the countryside.

"Leech also failed to store two shotguns and ammunition properly, which could have endangered people's lives.

"We will always work with the police to prosecute those who are endangering wildlife and our countryside."





Final Word

All that is left for me to do now is to thank you for all your support over the past 12 months.

I look forward to visiting, speaking, and working with many of you in 2022. Next month's newsletter may be a day or two later than normal due to public holidays.

In the meantime, I hope you all have a very happy and enjoyable festive period with all your loved ones.

Please do have a Merry Christmas and a Happy New Year!

Chris

Recent Press Releases

Police investigate after multiple doors opened in Cromer

Police have arrested a man following incidents in Cromer in the early hours of Saturday morning (27 November 2021).

It comes as officers continue to investigate reports of car doors and front doors, which were unlocked, being opened in the night in the Suffield Park area.

A man in his 20s was arrested yesterday (29 November) in connection with the incidents and was later released under investigation.

Sergeant Toby Gosden said: "We're aware that these incidents have caused concern amongst the Cromer community, and we are working to establish what actually took place here.

"No items were stolen, and our initial enquiries suggest that this was an isolated period of activity.

"While nothing was stolen, this situation serves as a poignant reminder to us all to check that our belongings, homes and vehicles are secure at all times."

Appeal following burglary in Tilney All Saints

Police are appealing for witnesses following a burglary in Tilney All Saints near King's Lynn.

A property in Church Road was broken into sometime overnight between Friday 26 November and Saturday 27 November.

Unknown suspect(s) stole a number of watches worth approximately £62,000. Officers are appealing for anyone who may have witnessed the incident or any suspicious activity in the area during the times stated to come forward.

Anyone with information should contact DC Andy Smith at Swaffham CID on 101 quoting crime reference 36/88322/21.

Alternatively contact Crimestoppers 100% anonymously on 0800 555 111.

Appeal following church metal theft

Police are appealing for the public's help after significant damage was caused to the roof of a church in Long Stratton.

Officers are keen to speak to witnesses or anyone with information after sheets of zinc were ripped from the roof of St Mary's Church in Ipswich Road, Long Stratton, sometime between 9am and 2pm between Wednesday 10 November and Wednesday 24 November 2021. The metal was stolen from a side extension.

PC James Butler of the Diss, Long Stratton and Harleston Safer Neighbourhood Team said: "The cost of repairing the damage will be considerable, as well as causing disruption to all those who use this much-loved community asset.

"We would appeal to anybody who has information regarding the theft or who may have seen any suspicious activity to contact police."

Anyone with information is asked to contact PC Butler on 101 quoting crime 36/87784/21. Alternatively, they can call Crimestoppers anonymously on 0800 555 111.

Jubilee House, Falconers Chase, Wymondham, Norfolk, NR18 0WW

To update your details or change your subscription preferences, please click here